1956

State of Utah v. Robert E. Woodall : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This appeal is from a verdict of a Jury in the Seventh District Court in and for San Juan County and a trial of a Criminal matter charging the Defendant and Appellant herein, Robert Elton Woodall, with the crime of Pandering in Violation of Section (76-53-8) Utah Code Annotated 1953 as follows:

That the said Defendant at the time and place aforesaid, induced, persuaded, encouraged, and enticed Ida E. Duclo also known as, Pat A. Morgan, a female person to become a prostitute.

A Motion for a change of venue was filed with the court on the 27th. day of January, 1955 on the grounds that a fair and impartial trial could not be had in San Juan County.

A hearing was had January 27th., 1955 and the motion was denied. A plea of not guilty was entered. The case came for trial February 23, 1955.

The Jury was duly impanelled and sworn to try the case. The state proceeded to offer

testimony in support of the charge of Pandering. Opening statement was made by counsel for the Plaintiff. The Defense Counsel made a motion for mistrial on the grounds that the District Attorney referred to other crimes not in question. The motion was denied.

Ida Duclo testified on direct examination that she became acquainted with Woodall, Bobby Miller and Jerry McAllister in October when they came to eat in a cafe where she worked.
(P. 6)

Around the first part of December, 1954 she and her husband made two visits to the trailer where Bobby Miller and Jerry McAllister lived for the purpose of having a few drinks and talking. (P. 8).

It is alleged that on December 12th., 1954 Woodall and Bobby Miller came to the Hole in the Rock and had a conversation with Ida Duclo, in the presents of Duane Duclo her husband and Judy and Eddy Dunn, at which time Woodall asked her to go to work as Bartender at this trailer, which was a house of prostitution, and

she accepted the job for a sum of \$5 per day (P. 10) Then on December 14th., 1954 there was alleged to have been another conversation where as Woodall Said, "Since I have started to work there and had been seen around town with Bobby Miller quite a bit that I had the same reputation that Bobby Miller had and asked me if I wouldn't go ahead and work as a prostitute "and I told him that "I would try anything once" (P. 11).

She further testified that from December 14th., 1954 to December 23, 1954 she worked as a prostitute (P. 13).

On cross examination, Ida Duclo admitted shortly after she went to work as a prostitute, she and her husband moved to a Motel in Moab, Utah (P. 20). She also admitted she and her husband knew it was a house of prostitution when they had previously visited this trailer prior to her working there (P. 23).

She testified that no one forced her, and does not deny being willing to work as a prostitute. On December 23, 1954 the trailer was

raided by Officers of the State and San Juan County and taken to jail in Monticello, Utah. The following evening, December 24th., 1954 while enroute to Price, Utah they stopped at Moab where they were given some whiskey in the presents of a Mr. Pester a State Officer (P.35) Shortly thereafter signing a statement for the Officers.

Bobby Miller testified on direct examination for the state that she was practicing prostitution in this said trailer house from the last of October to December 12th., 1954.

Woodall allegedly hired Ida Duclo for a Bartender (P. 45-46). She also admitted practicing all the prostitution for the two day Ida Duclo was the Bartender. Then on December 14, 1954 she over heard the alleged conversation between Woodall and Ida Duclo, but could only remember a small part of the conversation (P. 48).

Bobby Miller admitted she answered the door admitting the customers and doing the cooking (P. 58). She admits having a few drinks of whis-

thing at all to do with the trailer or the business that was conducted in it. (P. 91)

Don Gordon testifying for the Defendant testified he rented the trailer to Jerry McAllister who made all the payments but one, which was made by Bobby Miller and the only time he saw or spoke to the defendant Woodall was when he came and asked to borrow some oil cans to take some stove oil to Jerry's Trailer (P. 119).

Charles O. Chapman testifying for the Defendant testified he overheard a conversation between Woodall and Bobby Miller on the morning of February 23, 1955 whereas, Bobby Miller tried to persuade Woodall to plead guilty and take the pressure off of them, as if he didn't plead guilty they, Ida Duclou and Bobby Miller to get "Two Years", and if he did plead guilty "They would be turned loose" (P. 126).

Frank Pester called in rebuttal, testified that on his way to the Sheriff's Office he passed within ten feet of Bobby Miller and Woodall talking at the jail through a hole in a solid wall-thus, corroborating both, the foregoing statements of Chapman and Appellant.

THE VERDICT AND JUDGEMENT IS CONTRARY TO THE LAW AND EVIDENCE AND IS IN VIOLATION OF THE APPELLANT'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO "DUE PROCESS OF LAW" AND "EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAWS" GUARANTEED HIM THROUGH THE VIRTUE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE U. S. CONSTITUTION.

Appellant submits that the foundation on which the whole case against him^{rests} is invalid, hence, the whole case should legally fall under the weight of the following authoritative and documentary subject-matter.

A close parallel is noted between the case of the appellant and the TOPHAM CASE and in both cases identical substance is contained... In the following particulars:

1. The information fails to charge a public offense amid the ambiguity of its context, thus giving the Court no legal jurisdiction upon which to proceed.
2. The accused had no way of knowing "the nature of the accusation against him contrary to his state and Constitutional rights, (Article I, Sec. 12, & 14th. Amendment to U. S. Constitution, respectively)

As a matter of preface to the foregoing premise,
it is noted in 77-21-1 (1)... UCA. 1953 -

"This chapter was adopted to avoid the verbosity and complexity of the old form of pleading. In adopting that chapter, however, the legislature had no intention of permitting the prosecution to jeopardize the accused's rights by evasiveness nor vacillation. The accused is an innocent man. His prosecution - and the prosecutor should be impartial. It is as much the duty of the prosecution to recognize his innocence as it is to accomplish a conviction if the facts justify it. The Code of Criminal Procedure is not intended as a substitute for insufficient facts".

STATE v. SPENCER, 101 U. 237, 121 P. 2d. 912.

"The sufficiency or insufficiency of an information must be tested by its allegations and not by evidence introduced at the trial". STATE v. FISHER, 79 U. 115, 121, 3 P. 2d. 539.

In the Appellant's case as applicable to the TOPHAM case, the ambiguity of the information deprives the Appellant of any knowledge of the "nature of the accusation against him". The information comprising insufficient allegations could not be sufficient in itself. ... "The whole can be no greater than its parts".

"Under any system of criminal pleading it is the duty of the prosecution to so frame every indictment as to apprise the defendant with a reasonable degree of certainty of the character of the charges referred against him. The absence

of direct allegation of anything essential in the description of the substance, character or manner of the crime cannot be supplied by intendment.

PEOPLE v. HILL, 3 U. 334, 355, 3 P. 75.

...(Ibid)... it is well to bear in mind that it is as much an essential requisite under our Criminal Practice Act as it ever was that all matter material to constitute the particular crime charge should be alleged with such positiveness and distinctness as not to need the aid of intendment or implication. All this is embraced in the fundamental declaration that it is the right of every person accused of a crime "to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation" (PEOPLE v. HILL /cited/

The foregoing subject-matter is in complete harmony with the Appellant's contentions and fully substantiates his position.

The TOPHAM CASE gives further support to the foregoing in the following words:...

"*** a statement of the acts constituting the offense in ordinary and concise language, and in such manner as to enable a person of common understanding to know what is intended", and by section 4732 that 'the information or indictment must be direct and certain as it regards * * * the offense charged' and the particular

circumstances, when they are necessary to constitute a complete offense", Here, then, we have a Statute which in all cases require the information to contain "A statement of the acts constituting the offense" and to be "direct and certain as it regards the offense charged, and the particular circumstances of the offense, when they are necessary to constitute a complete offense.

Appellant submits that the information in the instant case failed to meet the foregoing requirements and thus fatally defective.

Paralleled to the TOPHAM case, the material parts of the instant case are that the Appellant did "Entice, encourage, persuade, and inveigle Ida Duslo to become a Prostitute". 'The information is charged in the mere language of the Statute' 'Of course there are cases where an information or indictment in the language of the statute is good. But there are many cases where that is not true. Says Mr. Bishop in New Criminal Procedure #624: The indictment must fully state the offense and if the statutory words do not suffice for this, it must expand beyond them". Said the Supreme Court of the United States in U.S. v. Cruikshank, 92, U.s.542, 23 L. Ed. 588: it is an elementary principal of criminal pleading that where the definition of an offense, whether

-10-

it be at common law or statute or by Statute includes Generic terms it is not sufficient that the indictment should charge the offense in the same Generic terms as in the definition but it must state the species-it must descend to particulars". "The same thought is expressed by Mr. Justice Frick in the Case of STATE v. SWAN 31 Utah, 336, 88 Pac. 12 that: "Where and act denounced by the statute is couched in Generic terms, the information must go further in stating the offense than by merely using the language of the statute and that an information in such language is not sufficient in those case where the acts constituting the offense are nearly as varied as the number of cases in which the charge is made".

(IbidP.890) In order that an information merely in the language of the statute may be sufficient, the words of the Statute themselves must fully and directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity set forth all the elements necessary to constitute the offense intended to be punished and must state all the material facts and circumstances embraced in the

definition of the offense". 22 Cys. 340;
EVANS v. UNITED STATES, 153 U. s. 587, 14 Sup.
Ct. 934, 38 L. Ed. 830; United States v. CARLL
105 U. S. 611, 26 L. Ed. 1135.

In the TOPHAM CASE emphasis was seemingly
placed on the question of willingness on the
part of the prosecutrix to remain in the house
of prostitution and practice the trade thereof.
It was shown in the Topham case that the prosecu-
trix not only remained in the "Stockade" WILLING-
LY but voluntarily left it each morning and re-
turned in the evening.

In the instant case, the Prosecutrix was
willing to work in the house of Prostitution
operated by an accomplice, BOBBY MILLER in addit-
ion her husband was willing for her to work there
It is readily apparent that her decision to again
work as a prostitute was wholly motivated by the
fact that she could not support herself and her
UN-EMPLOYED HUSBAND in the MOAB area on the \$5.00
per day that she was being paid in the capacity c
of "Bartender" hence, it was NEED and not the
Appellant that was the factor which produced what

INDUCEMENT, ENCOURAGEMENT, ENTICEMENT AND PERSU-
ASION that may be claimed to have been experien-
ced by the prosecutrix. Like the prosecutrix in
the Topham case, in the instant case, the Prose-
cutrix left the brothel every night and VOLUNTAR-
ILY RETURNED THE NEXT DAY TO CONTINUE HER IMMOR-
AL PRACTICES which included "soliciting the tra-
de" of TWO of the arresting officer in this matt-
er (Tr. 83). At Tr. 26, IDA DUCLO (Prosecutrix in
instant case) admits that she was PERFECTLY
WILLING to work as a prostitute and NO FORCE
WHATSOEVER was used to effect her willingness.

In the TOPHAM CASE, a very tempting promise
was made to the prosecutrix - (quoting "prosecu-
trix)... "I could make good money and could get
some nice clothes". In the instant case no
promises were made at all nor any other form
"INDUCEMENT".

Appellant calls attention to the Record at
page 7 at which it is stated by the Trial Court
Judge (in his instructions to the jury):...

"To this information the defendant has pleaded
not guilty. Such plea puts in issue each and
every material allegation of the information and
casts upon the state the burden of proving same
to the satisfaction beyond all reasonable
doubt."

doubt before you are warranted in finding a verdict of guilty.

Setting before the jury the foregoing premise, Appellant submits that the Trial Court committed a prejudicial error in allowing the instant case to go before the jury for its verdict despite the fact that "EACH AND EVERY MATERIAL ALLEGATION OF THE INFORMATION" could not have been possibly proved "BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT" in view of the evidence (as such) in this case. Especially consistent with the Trial Court's Instruction to the Jury - No. 3. . . .

"The words, "Induce, persuade, encourage and entice have no meaning different in law from the common understanding that people generally familiar with the English language give them. In order for a course of conduct or words spoken to come within what may be classed as either inducement, persuasion, encouragement, or enticement to become a prostitute, they must tend to bring about that result. In other words, before you can convict the defendant you must find beyond all reasonable doubt that his actions or the words spoken by him were such as may reasonably be

expected to cause IDA E. DUCLO to become a prostitute. If, therefore, you entertain a reasonable doubt as to whether the conduct of the defendant as you find it from the evidence had a reasonable tendency to cause IDA E. DUCLO to become a prostitute, then you cannot find him guilty.

In accordance with the Trial Court's criteria that one may use in comprehending(if one can) the ambiguity of the somewhat related and general terms "INDUCE, PERSUADE, ENCOURAGE, AND ENTICE", Appellant has sought the assistance of "Webster's New Collegiate" Dictionary and find the following definitions of the words in question which allegedly constitute the offense from which conviction the appellant presently appeals.

- (1) ENCOURAGE: To inspire with courage, to give spirit or hope; to foster.
- (2) ENTICE: To draw on by exciting hope or desire; allure; attract; often in a bad sense - to tempt.
- (3) INDUCE: Implies influence over the reason or judgement; To lead on, prevail upon (move another to act in a certain way

PERSUADE: Implies a appeal to a person's emotions.

Appellant submits that no where in the record or within a impartial line of reasoning is there any form of discourse having occurred between the appellant and the Prosecutrix and/or Bobby Miller wherein it could be concluded nor inferred that the Appellant: inspired, gave spirit, hope, nor fostered IDA DUCLO which would satisfy ENCOURAGEMENT; No where in the record can it be found that the Appellant excited hope or desire; allured; attracted or tempted IDA DUCLO in any way to satisfy enticement. The record (which the Appellant considers to be synonymous with the evidence) fails to show through expression or implication that Appellant appealed to the emotions of IDA DUCLO in any way that would "PERSUADE" her to do anymore than face the fact that what ever integrity she may feel to possess could not be sustained if she chose to associate with (A PROSTITUTE - one BOBBY MILLER; thus an appeal to reason and personal esteem - not an appeal to emotions, hence no persuasion. No where in the claimed discourse between the

Appellant and the Prosecutrix is^{n't} there any basis for a claim that the Appellant exerted any influence over the reason of judgement of Ida Duelo nor moved her to act in a certain way - on the other hand, there was no reluctance shown; nor chastity claimed nor established; the decision of the part of the prosecutrix and her husband to frequent an establishment wherein prostitution was being practiced in one room of a two room trailer and whiskey being illegally sold in the other room - BEFORE THE CLAIMED "INDUCEMENT" ETC., by the Appellant, dismisses any logical inference that influence would be needed in view of such voluntary patronage to the very disagreeable and illegal conditions which existed; therefore, no INDUCEMENT was necessary nor given.

It should be, and should have been apparent that the information was not founded upon a basis that could be supported by the Constitution of Utah and should have fallen before ever being offered to the jury for a decision. No doubt should arise as to the fact that it was PROPERTY AND U

not any words nor acts on the part of the Appellant. IDA DUCLO was in a position whereas she not only had to support herself but she also had to support and UNEMPLOYED HUSBAND - the record in this matter clearly shows such Self-preservation meant that more money had to be made in view of \$5.00 per day earnings of IDA being far insufficient to support IDA DUCLO and her husband; thus Appellant repeats-ANY ENTICEMENT should in all fairness be (accredited to) charged to NEED and personal desire and not to an inferred and /or fabricated contention of guilt on the part of the Appellant when such a contention must attempt to survive in the complete absence of any form of probability.

At page 897 of STATE v. TOPHAM the following applicable summation is made:

"Even though the evidence should support a good information, yet for reasons already stated, the prosecution must fail because of the fatally defective information; such a defect being incurable by evidence or verdict. And information or indictment when assailed as to substance must stand or fall by its own structure. It is not a technical but a sound and fundamental rule in the law of criminal procedure that the accused be apprised not by the evidence adduced but at the outset by the indictment or information

with reasonable certainty of the exact nature of the accusation against him, This rule cannot be bent to meet exigencies of a particular case nor the class or the grade of the person accused. The constitution and Statute prescribe the rules by which the sufficiency of an information may be determined and they apply to all alike. They do not prescribe one rule for a keeper or director of a house of prostitution and another for a NUN, nor one rule for one offense and another rule for another offense."

- 19 -

1

APPELLANT WAS DENIED A "FAIR TRIAL" UNDER ARTICLE I. SEC. 12 AND THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE U. S. CONSTITUTION AND CONTRARY TO 77-31-15 UCA. 1953; APPELLANT WAS CONVICTED ON THE UNCORROBORATED (AND SUBORNED) TESTIMONY OF ACCOMPLICES.

Appellant submits that synonymous with the case of SMITH v. STATE (No. 8158) Supreme Court of Utah - September 28, 1954, his case contains the following fatal defects existing in common to both cases:

- (A) There is no evidence that the prosecutrix was a chaste woman before accused allegedly induced her to become a prostitute;

- (B) Like the SMITH case (Ibid) "the offense with which the Appellant was charged is one of a number found in the pandering Statute 76-53-8 UCA. 1953, 'it differs from some of the others by being predicated on an inducement to become a prostitute. There is no evidence here that the prosecutrix was not a chaste woman before the accused allegedly induced her to become a prostitute and the presumption that she was chaste at that time. Title 77-31-14 requires that:

"Upon a trial for *** inveigling, enticing or taking away any female of previously chaste character for the purpose of prostitution * * the defendant shall not be convicted upon testimony of the woman upon whom or with whom the offense was committed, unless she is corroborated ed by other evidence".

That the prosecutrix was not "CHASTE" is clearly seen in her decision to work at a place of "ill-repute" and associate with prostitutes and less - (See Record at P. 10) At page 11, it is noted that the prosecutrix, IDA DUCLO, worked as bartender in a house of prostitution. and willfully violated the law not only as to employment i.e. she sold WHISKEY including such a fraudulent procedure as selling not only whiskey but "See Shots" knowing such to be illegal.

While working at a cafe not too far from the Trailer in which Prostitution was being practiced IDA DUCLO admits that she knew the place where she was later to sell whiskey (in addition to herself was a place of Prostitution (E-P.20) At the same page she admits that her husband knew her prospective place of employment was a Place wherein prostitution was being practiced. Still, in mockery of any claim of chastity, IDA DUCLO chose to work under such conditions chose to identify herself with Prostitutes "tricks" and "suckers" in a business that was not only in violation of the law but also in violation of Mores and Code of

Ethics which governs the behavior of American Society.

Appellant submits that CHASTITY could not survive beyond an Initial venture unto such immoral conditions and no margin exist wherein the Prosecutrix's WILLFUL Initial step (forestated) would logically encompass a need for and or a reasonable inference of a need for "INDUCEMENT" "ENCOURAGEMENT", "ENTICEMENT" etc. as claimed to have been used by the Appellant, and thus effecting the crime for which he has been incarcerated.

Additional common substance existing in the instant case and the case of SMITH v. STATE (Ibid) is seen in a comparative study of the two cases in connection with the statement of the Honorable Justice, Henroid, author of the opinion in the said Smith Case. . .

"The defendant urges that the evidence as a matter of law, failed to establish guilt and we agree. The only evidence other than the testimony of the prosecutrix was a sister's statement that defendant jokingly had remarked that

else other than being a waitress and that the Prosecutrix was seen to give the defendant some money on one occasion, testimony of another woman that she had given the accused some money and testimony of an officer that he had seen the prosecutrix and the accused together on a number of occasions. None of this evidence tends to prove or corroborate the charge that the defendant "Induced, Persuaded, encouraged, invigled, and enticed" the prosecutrix "to become a prostitute".

In the instant case the foregoing matters are somewhat inseparably related in the following specific ways:

1. The only evidence other than the testimony of the prosecutrix, is that of a confession professional prostitute - and accomplice named (called) Bobby Miller, who in addition to influencing the prosecutrix through showing the appearance of easily practiced prostitution, stated that the Appellant had a conversation with IDA DUCLO (Prosecutrix) which conversation she states she did not hear - (R. 49/top of page

ATTENTION IN THE CONVERSATION, so I guess she must have told him O.K. because she went to work"... It is noted that this bit of uncertainty and prejudicial conjecture immediately followed the seeming POSITIVE OR MANUFACTURED act of eavesdropping on the part of Bobby Miller (See P. 48) . . .

Q. "Relate what you heard Woodall say and what you heard Mrs. Duclé Say?

A. "He told us that since she'd been seen around Meab with me and that I had such a bad reputation that her reputation was the same as mine now so she might as well go all the way. She'd get more money. There was more money in it that way.

In regard to the foregoing, Appellant submits that such a statement, if made by him, (which he doubts) would not in any way satisfy a contention of enticement, encouragement, persuasion, and inveigling of the Prosecutrix to become a prostitute. On the contrary Appellant's statement was in truth and objective analysis of things as they existed - "calling a spade a spade" and the reasoning of such an act on

Sponsored by the S.J. Quinney Law Library. Funding for digitization provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.

Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

appellant's part falls within the scope of present-day appeals to reason with such slangs as "YOU'RE NO BETTER THAN THE COMPANY YOU KEEP" and "BIRDS OF THE FEATHER FLOCK TOGETHER". And as some prosecuting agencies expound... "GUILT BY ASSOCIATION".

An impartial and unbiased appraisal of claimed words to the Prosecutrix in view of the evident WILLINGNESS of the Prosecutrix to work as a prostitute and by ^her own admission to such effect. (R. PP. 21-22)

Mr. DUNCAN (in regard to Bobby Miller)

Q. "Did you have a conversation about anything with her?"

A. "Not that I remember."

Q. "Don't remember any conversation. Where

Q. "Where did you first meet her?"

A. "There at the Hole in the Rock"

Q. "How did you know that place to be, that trailer was a house of prostitution?"

A. "YES I GUESSE SO"

Q. "Who told you, did somebody tell you it was?"

A. "No, not right out."

Q. "Well, what gave you the impression it was a house of prostitution?"

A. "I DON'T KNOW."

Q. "DID YOUR HUSBAND TELL YOU THAT?"

A. "NO SIR."

Q. "YOU AND YOUR HUSBAND WENT OVER THERE TO
DRINK BEER AND THINGS."

A. "A COUPLE TIMES, YES, SIR."

Q. "AND THAT WAS, OF COURSE, BEFORE YOU WENT
TO WORK THERE WASN'T IT?"

A. "SIR?"

Q. "THAT WAS BEFORE YOU WENT TO WORK THERE
WASN'T IT?"

A. "YES SIR."

- - - - - AT PAGE 23- - - - -

Q. "WELL, you know in your mind it was A HOUSE
OF ILL FAME, is that correct?"

A. "YES."

Q. "So you went there to tend bar, whatever you
were going to do, you knew IT WAS A HOUSE
OF PROSTITUTION, didn't you?"

A. "YES SIR."

Q. "And YOU HUSBAND KNEW IT DIDN'T BE."

A. "YES."

Thus it is evident that in view of the foregoing that the Prosecutrix, IDA DUCLO, went into the crime of Prostitution "with her eyes wide open" and own her volition and independent of any form of enticement, persuasion, encouragement, inveigling that has been alleged. The IDA DUCLO AND, HER HUSBAND KNEW HER PLACE OF employment was a house of Prostitution; IDA DUCLO'S husband was unemployed and the high cost of living in the MOAB area would greatly tend to defeat any premise that IDA and her husband were able to eat and pay rent on the \$5.00 per day that IDA DUCLO alone was making as bartender at the Trailer; hence, the statement of the Appellant relating the cold possible unpleasant truth that IDA had been seen around town with a Prostitute and her associations with such a party would lead any normal thinking human being to believe that Ida was either a prostitute or she had something in common with those in that type of life..."Saints do not walk arm in arm with sinners"; "Kings do not often hold counsel with thieves".

It has been shown in preceding pages that the Prosecutrix and her husband knew all about Prostitution setup BEFORE THE PROSECUTRIX CHOSE TO WORK THERE.

Chasity, would have prevented IDA DUCLO, from accepting such a job.

Chasity, would have resulted in IDA DUCLO and her husband coosing any of several LEGAL ESTABLISHMENTS to go and drink illegally sold alcoholic beverages in a setting of prostitution. (R. 22)

Chasity would have logically demanded that IDA DUCLO decline to associate with a character whom she knew to be a PROSTITUTE - i.e. BOBBY MILLER.

Revelant to the foregoing, this Honorable Court has taken the following position)in concurrence with Mr. Justice Menroid:

(STATE v. SMITH - 274 P. 2d. 246) PP.246-47:)

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