1956

State of Utah v. Robert E. Woodall : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING
DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS FOR
WANT OF CORROBORATION OF THE VIC-
TIM'S TESTIMONY.

To sustain a conviction for pandering the testimony of the victim must be corroborated. *State v. Smith*, 2 U. 2nd 358, 284 P. 2d 246. We have no quarrel with this pronouncement of the law for which defendant claims. However, there is nothing in *State v. Smith*, supra, which would indicate that the corroborative evidence required be other than that necessary under Section 77-31-18, U. C. A. 1953. Therefore, the corroboration need not go to all of the material facts as testified by the victim, nor need it be sufficient in itself to support a conviction; it may be slight and entitled to little consideration. It must connect the defendant with the commission of the offense and be inconsistent with his innocence and must do more than cast a grave suspicion on the defendant all without the aid of the testimony of the accomplice. *State v. Vigil*, . . . U. . . ., 260 P. 2d 539, and cases there cited.

What, then, in this case, is the evidence completely aside from the testimony of the victim, Pat, which connects the defendant with the offense charged?

Bobby testified that Pat was employed by the defendant at a stipulated wage only to tend bar; that for two days Pat tended bar and did not become a prostitute until

after the defendant proposed to Pat that she do so and suggested that there would be more money for Pat in it that way. Bobby testified that the defendant attended the daily needs of the trailer house and that for a period he took his meals there. Bobby was not an accomplice and her testimony needed no corroboration and was alone sufficient to prove the offense charged. *State v. Davie*, . . . U. . . , 240 P. 2d 263. But there is more.

Jerry testified that prior to Pat's employment by the defendant Pat knew nothing of prostitution and could not answer questions pertaining thereto. Jerry testified that the defendant attended to errands for her while she was residing at the trailer; that the defendant left his clothes in the trailer house when she was occupying the premises. Although Jerry claimed ownership of the trailer, she admitted that the large diamond ring used as collateral for the purchase of the trailer came from the defendant. The defense witness, Dan Gordon, testified as to the diamond ring, and as to the fact that Bobby, the redhead, made at least one payment on the trailer *after* Jerry had departed the state. There was abundant evidence to connect the defendant with the trailer house and with the goings on thereat.

There was ample competent evidence adduced from which the jury could find beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant perpetrated the crime of pandering. When such competent evidence appears in the record, there can be no error in failing to direct a verdict of acquittal, *State v. Peterson*, . . . U. . . , 240 P. 2nd 504; or in refusing to grant a motion to dismiss. The rule applicable when a

motion to dismiss challenges the legal sufficiency of the evidence is, as stated by this court:

"The rule which must be applied upon a motion to dismiss a criminal case is that all reasonable inferences are to be taken in favor of the state, and only if the record itself reveals that no reasonable man could draw an inference of guilt therefrom is the trial court justified in taking the case from the jury." *State v. Thatcher*, 108 U. 63, 157 P. 2d 258.

In *State v. Penderville*, 2 U. 2nd 281, 272 P. 2d 195, the court said:

"It has been repeatedly held by this court that upon a motion to dismiss or to direct a verdict of not guilty for lack of evidence that the trial court does not consider the weight of the evidence or credibility of the witnesses, but determines the naked legal proposition of law, whether there is any substantial evidence of the guilt of the accused, and all reasonable inferences are to be taken in favor of the state. *State v. Levellyn*, 71 Utah 331, 266 P. 261; *State v. Thatcher*, 108 Utah 63, 157 P. 2d 258; *State v. Aures*, 102 Utah 113, 127 P. 2d 872; *State v. Peterson*, . . . Utah . . ., 240 P. 2d 504. As is pointed out in one or more of these cases, the trial court has a discretion in the case of a motion for a new trial that it does not have in case of a motion to dismiss or to direct a verdict of not guilty."

The trial court did not err in this case and could have properly done only what it did do in denying the motion for directed verdict or to dismiss the information.

POINT II

THE COURT DID NOT ERR BY FAILING TO
DEFINE TO THE JURY THE MEANING OF
CRIMINAL INTENT.

No instruction was requested of the court as to the meaning of "intent" or "criminal intent" as that word "intent" was used in Instruction No. 2 as given by the court. This court in such cases has said:

"It is the court's duty to try the issues made by the parties and not to make cases for them. We have held that where instructions are palpably erroneous to such an extent that they would, if followed by the jury, prevent a fair or proper determination of the issues, we may notice the error without exception having been taken. *State v. Cobo*, 90 Utah 89, 60 P. 2d 952; *State v. Waid*, 92 Utah 297, 67 P. 2d 647. But we are aware of no holding that the mere failure to give an instruction which might have been given but which was not requested or called to the attention of the court, and no exception taken to the failure to give it will be noticed on appeal."

State v. Peterson, supra, see also *State v. Mitchell*, ... U. ... , 278 P. 2d 618, 622.

The inquiry here then is: was the instruction so palpably erroneous that, if followed by the jury, it would prevent a fair or proper determination of the issues? We think not; specific intent was not an issue of the crime charged. The statutory offense was the *act* of inducing, persuading, encouraging or enticing the victim to become a prostitute; although all "common law crimes" consist of two elements, namely, the criminal act or omission and the mental ele-

ment the legislature may dispense with necessity for a criminal intent and punish particular acts without regard to mental attitude of the doer. *Simmons v. State*, 10 So. 2d 436, 438, 151 Fla. 778. The defendants' cause was not prejudiced by the court's failure to define the meaning of "intent"; no specific intent was necessary to constitute the offense.

POINT III

THE COURT SUFFICIENTLY INSTRUCTED THE JURY AS TO CORROBORATION OF THE VICTIM'S TESTIMONY.

Appellant claims instruction No. 11 erroneous for the reason that the instructions permitted the jury to "speculate as to what was meant by *"corroborative"* testimony. For this contention appellant relies upon no authority other than the legal definition of *"corroborative evidence"*. It has been held that:

"The word 'corroboration' is not one of technical meaning but is in ordinary use, and its meaning is generally understood, and the court is not required to instruct the jury what the word means." *Austin v. State*, 101 S. W. 1162, 51 Tex. Cr. R. 327.

The general rule appears to be that terms in common use with well understood meaning need no special definition. See American Digest System, Criminal Law, key 800(2). Further, here again, no such instruction was requested. Respondent's argument on Point II, *supra*, is equally applicable here.

POINT IV

REFUSAL OF DEFENDANT'S REQUESTED
INSTRUCTIONS NO. 3 AND 4 WAS NOT ER-
ROR.

Defendant requested the following instruction:

"You are instructed that in order for defendant to be guilty as charged in the information on file herein, the State must have shown by the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt that defendant made Ida E. Duclo, also known as Pat A. Morgan, certain promises and inducements which she relied upon and which actually tended to cause her to become a prostitute.

"If you find from the evidence that the said Pat Morgan, also known as Ida Duclo became a prostitute without any promises or inducements which caused her to become such, then you must return a verdict in favor of defendant, not guilty."

The court below was thus asked to instruct the jury that the state must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the promises and inducements made to the victim by the defendant actually tended to cause her to become a prostitute. That is not the law in this jurisdiction and the instruction was properly refused; for:

"Success is not a necessary component of the crime." *State v. Gates*, 118 U. 172, 221 P. 2d 878.

Defendant also asked the court below to instruct the jury:

"You are instructed that in order for you to find defendant guilty of pandering, under Section

76-53-8, U. C. A. 1953, you must find that defendant's persuasions, inducements or suggestions, if any, were the efficient or moving cause in bringing about the illicit relations wherein, Ida E. Duclo, also known as Pat A. Morgan, became a prostitute.

"If you find from the evidence that the said Ida E. Duclo, also known as Pat A. Morgan, did not engage in illicit relations and became a prostitute because of anything defendant may have said to her, but rather that she became a prostitute upon her own volition and that she engaged in prostitution because of her own independent desire to do so, then you must find the issues in favor of defendant and return a verdict of not guilty."

This instruction was objectionable for the identical reason; it mattered not whether the defendant's persuasion, inducements or suggestions did in fact cause the victim to become a prostitute any more than it mattered whether she became one or not.

Each party is entitled to his theory of the case *which is supported by competent evidence*, *State v. Newton*, 105 U. 561, 144 P. 2d 290. An examination of the record in the case, however, does not disclose *any testimony or other evidence* which would sustain defendant's theory that the victim was already a prostitute; the presumption is that she was chaste before the defendant induced her to become a prostitute. *State v. Smith*, *supra*. The defendant's own witness, Jerry, testified that the victim knew nothing of prostitution even though she, Jerry, claimed that the victim's husband had contended that Pat had "worked" before. There is no merit to the contention that the court should

have instructed the jury on the defendant's theory of the case in the absence of substantial evidence to sustain such theory.

CONCLUSION

The verdict should be affirmed.